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UNITED STATES DIS H CO 3371 
RICH ANTOUN, Individually and on Behalf of 
All Others Similarly Situated, 

) 
) 
) 

Civil Action No.: 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 
) 

v. ) 
) 

NAM TAl ELECTRONICS, INC., MING ) 

KOWN KOO, and LU PING WANG, ) 
) 

Defendants, ) 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 


--------------------------------) 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff Rich Antoun, individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, 

by his undersigned attorneys, for his complaint against defendants, alleges the following based 

upon personal knowledge as to himself and his own acts, and infornlation and belief as to all 

other matters, based upon, inter alia, the investigation conducted by and through his attorneys, 

which included, among other things, a review of the defendants' public documents, conference 

calls and announcements made by defendants, United States Securities and Exchange 

Commission ("SEC") filings, wire and press releases published by and regarding Nam Tai 

Electronics, Inc. ("Nam Tai" or the "Company"), analysts' reports and advisories about the 

Company, and information readily obtainable on the Internet. Plaintiff believes that substantial 

evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity 

for discovery. 
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NATURE OF THE ACTION 
 
1. This is a federal securities class action on behalf of a class consisting of all 

persons other than defendants who purchased Nam Tai securities between August 6, 2012 and 

April 26, 2013, inclusive (the “Class Period”), seeking to recover damages caused by defendants’ 

violations of the federal securities laws and to pursue remedies under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of 

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5 against the Company 

and certain of its top officials.  

2. Nam Tai is an electronics design and manufacturing services provider to original 

equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”).  The Company manufactures cell phones, palm-sized PCs, 

personal digital assistants, electronic dictionaries, calculators, digital camera accessories, 

components including liquid crystal display modules (“LCMs”) and panels, radio frequency 

modules, and flexible printed circuit subassemblies. 

3. On April 29, 2013, the Company disclosed that customer orders for its liquid 

crystal display modules were much lower than originally anticipated.  The Company noted that it 

relies on a very small number of customers forcing it to lower its prices to meet customers’ 

needs.  Further, the Company noted that it made efforts to minimize potential losses resulting 

from cancellation and fluctuation of orders by its customers and decided to halt capital 

investment into technology platforms that cannot produce steady income streams.  Further, the 

Company disclosed that it was considering halting its best quality LCM production operations 

service in both its Shenzhen and Wuxi manufacturing facilities by the end of June 2013 in order 

to minimize further losses and preserve cash. 

4. On this news, the Company’s shares declined $3.58 per share, or over 31.6%, to  

close at $7.75 per share. 

Case 1:13-cv-03371-PAC   Document 1    Filed 05/17/13   Page 2 of 22



 3 

 

5. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made false and/or misleading 

statements, as well as failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s business, 

operations, and prospects. Specifically, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements 

and/or failed to disclose that: (1) intense competition had forced the Company to lower its unit 

sales prices, thereby threatening the Company’s future profitability; (2)  anticipated cancellation 

and fluctuation of orders by its key customers would cause it to halt capital investment into 

technology platforms; (3)  Due to declining margins and volatility Company would have to halt 

its best quality LCM production operations services in both its Shenzhen and Wuxi 

manufacturing facilities in order to minimize further losses and preserve cash; and (4) as a result 

of the foregoing, the Company’s statements were materially false and misleading at all relevant 

times.  

6. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the precipitous 

decline in the market value of the Company's Securities, Plaintiff and other Class members have 

suffered significant losses and damages. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 
 
7. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of 

the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (17 

C.F.R. §240.10b-5).  

8. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to §27 

of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §78aa) and 28 U.S.C. §1331.  

9. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to §27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§78aa and 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) as the Securities of Nam Tai were publicly traded in this District.  
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10. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged in this Complaint, 

defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, 

including but not limited to, the United States mail, interstate telephone communications and the 

facilities of the national securities exchange.  

PARTIES 
 
11. Plaintiff Rich Antoun, as set forth in the attached certification, purchased Nam 

Tai Securities at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and has been damaged 

thereby.  

12. Defendant Nam Tai is a British Virgin Islands corporation with its headquarters 

located at Gushu Industrial Estate, Xixiang, Baoan, Shenzhen, Peoples’ Republic of China 

(“China”). 

13. Defendant Ming Kown Koo (“Koo”) was at all relevant times the Company’s 

Executive Chairman of its Board of Directors and Chief Financial Officer. 

14. Defendant Lu Ping Wang (“Wang”) was at all relevant times the Company’s 

Chief Executive Officer.  Defendant Wang is also the Senior Operations President of Wuxi 

Manufacturing.  

15. The defendants referenced above in ¶¶ 13 and 14 are sometimes referred to herein 

as the “Individual Defendants.”  

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS 
 

Background 

16. Nam Tai is an electronic manufacturing and design services provider to a select 

group of the world’s leading telecommunications and consumer electronic products OEMs. The 

components, modules and subassemblies are used in numerous electronic products, including 
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mobile phones, IP phones, notebook computers, digital cameras, electronic toys, handheld video 

game devices and learning devices. The Company also manufactures finished products, 

including mobile phone accessories, home entertainment products and educational products. The 

Company also assists our OEM customers in the design and development of their products and 

furnishes full turnkey manufacturing services that utilize advanced manufacturing processes and 

production technologies. 

Materially False and Misleading  
Statements Issued During the Class Period 

 
17.  On August 6, 2012, the Company issued a press release announcing its financial 

results for the second quarter ended June 30, 2012.  The Company reported net income of $9.4 

million, or $0.21 diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) and net sales of $205 million, compared to 

net income of $3 million, or $0.07 diluted EPS and net sales of $126 million for the same period 

a year ago. 

18. The Company further represented the following in the press release: 

The improvement of the Company’s results in the second quarter of 2012 was 
mainly due to three factors. First, sales increased significantly by 62.8%, as a 
result of the Company’s Wuxi manufacturing facility ramping up the production 
of larger quantities of high-resolution liquid crystal display modules (“LCMs”) 
for tablets in June 2012. Second, the Company had $6.5 million in other income, 
of which $4 million was compensation income from customers for a percentage of 
the costs and overhead expenses incurred in relation to the postponement of the 
mass production of certain products. The Company also recorded $2.6 million of 
subsidy granted as an advanced technology incentive allowance from the Wuxi 
government as a result of the Company’s investment and facility expansion in 
Wuxi. Third, the Company’s gross and net profit also improved after the 
Company discontinued certain production orders that have had low sales and poor 
performance for the past few years. 
 

*** 
The Company’s revenue increased by 62.8% for the second quarter of 2012, as 
compared to the second quarter of 2011, excluding the contribution from the 
discontinued the low profit margin businesses. This significant revenue increase 
was principally due to commencement of the production of high-resolution LCMs 
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for tablets at the Company’s Wuxi facility beginning in June 2012. Net income in 
the second quarter of 2012 also increased significantly to $9.4 million, as 
compared to net income of $3.0 million in same quarter of 2011. 
 
Regarding the business of high-resolution LCMs for smartphones in the Shenzhen 
manufacturing facility, the Company has recently reached an agreement with its 
customer for the pricing and business terms and has received the relevant 
production orders. The production pilot run will be started in August 2012 and the 
mass production will commence in September 2012. 
 
For the second half of 2012, the Company’s management anticipates the tablet 
LCM business will run smoothly and the smartphone LCM orders will also 
commence their production in Shenzhen, which could generate further increases 
in sales and the Company’s profit may also continue to improve. 
 
19. On November 5, 2012, the Company issued a press release announcing its 

financial results for the third quarter ended September 30, 2012.  The Company reported net 

income of $24.6 million, or $0.54 diluted EPS and net sales of $380 million, compared to net 

income of $1.1 million, or $0.02 diluted EPS and net sales of $128 million for the same period a 

year ago. 

20. The Company further represented the following in the press release: 

The improvement of the Company’s results in the third quarter of 2012 was 
mainly due to six factors. First, sales increased significantly by 198.0% compared 
to the same period last year, as a result of (i) the Company’s Wuxi manufacturing 
facility continued to ramp up of its production of high-resolution liquid crystal 
display modules (“LCMs”) for tablets and (ii) the Company’s Shenzhen 
manufacturing facility began mass production of high-resolution LCMs for 
smartphones in September 2012. Second, the management of the Company 
adopted certain employee stock option arrangement and forfeited a cash incentive 
bonus of $5.1 million. Third, the Company had $2.0 million in other and interest 
income, including $0.6 million of incentive allowance from the PRC government 
for the manufacturing of mechanical and electrical products, $0.9 million of 
interest income and $0.5 million of exchange gain. Fourth, the Company has 
improved its gross and net profit by discontinuing certain sales orders that have 
had poor performance. Fifth, the Company enjoyed benefit from the certain 
exemption treatment and tax reduction for its Wuxi operation and a tax benefit of 
$1.1 million as a result of tax losses carried forward from last year. Lastly, the 
Company has also been successful in its cost control management which 
effectively maintaining expenses at a similar level as before even though it had a 
significant increase in sales. 
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*** 

The Company’s revenue increased by 198.0% in the third quarter of 2012 
compared to the third quarter of 2011, excluding the contribution from the 
discontinued businesses. This significant revenue increase was principally due to 
the ramping up of the production of high-resolution LCM for tablets at the 
Company’s Wuxi facility and the commencement of the production of high-
resolution LCM for smartphones at the Company’s Shenzhen facility beginning in 
September 2012. After the final evaluation on the viability of its flexible printed 
circuit (“FPC”) business based on its performance in the third quarter of 2012, the 
Company has decided to discontinue its FPC business at the end of March 2013, 
which business has been generating losses since its initial production. 
 
The Company is currently under discussion with its existing customers, as 
essential production partners, for the manufacturing of another LCM product, 
which the Company believes will continue to drive the expansion of its existing 
production capacity and production facilities. 
 
21. On November 5, 2012 the Company also held a conference call with investors to 

discuss third quarter 2012 results, during this call the Company informed investors that 

production in its lucrative LCM market would “ramp” up in 2013: 

In terms of our outlook over the near term, we remain optimistic about the 
opportunities for additional growth. We believe that new programs we 
have won and the forecast mix of our end market customer demand should 
enable us to deliver improving sequential revenue growth for the 
remainder of 2012. 
 
As we have discussed, the ramp in revenues from these programs has 
clearly begun; however we believe the revenue growth in 2013 from these 
programs will likely be more significant. Many of these programs are 
more complex than previous LCM production runs, which also explains 
some of the start-up challenges and associated costs as we move to full 
production. 
 

22. On January 28, 2013, the Company issued a press release announcing its financial 

results for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2012.  For the fourth quarter, the 

Company reported net income of $36.6 million, or $0.80 diluted EPS and net sales of $468.5 

million, compared to net loss of $5.6 million, or ($0.13) diluted EPS and net sales of $129 

million for the same period a year ago.  For the year, the Company reported net income of $66.9 
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million, or $1.48 diluted EPS and net sales of $1.1 billion, compared to net income of $505,000, 

or $0.01 diluted EPS and net sales of $525 million for the same period a year ago. 

23. The Company further represented the following in the press release: 

The improvement of the Company’s results in the fourth quarter of 2012 was 
mainly due to four factors.  First, sales increased significantly by 263% compared 
to the same period last year, as a result of (i) the Company’s Shenzhen 
manufacturing facility began mass production of high-resolution liquid crystal 
display modules (“LCMs”) for smartphones in September 2012 and (ii) the 
Company’s Wuxi manufacturing facility continued to ramp up its production of 
high-resolution LCMs for tablets. Second, the Company had $4 million in other 
and interest income, including $0.3 million of incentive allowance from the PRC 
government, $0.6 million in interest income and $1 million in exchange gain. 
Third, the Company has improved its gross and net profits by discontinuing 
certain sales orders that have had poor performance. Fourth, the Company 
enjoyed benefit from certain exemption treatment and tax reduction for its Wuxi 
operation and a tax benefit of $0.6 million, as a result of tax losses carried 
forward from last year. 
 

*** 
The Company’s revenue increased year-over-year 118.6% for 2012, when 
compared with 2011, excluding the contribution from the discontinued business. 
This significant revenue increase was attributable to the ramp up of the production 
of high-resolution LCMs for tablets at the Company’s Wuxi facility in June 2012 
and the commencement of mass production of high-resolution LCMs for 
smartphones at the Company’s Shenzhen facility in September 2012. After the 
final evaluation on the viability of its flexible printed circuit (“FPC”) business 
based on its performance in the third quarter of 2012, the Company has also 
decided to discontinue its FPC business by the end of March 2013, which 
business has been generating losses since its initial production. 
 
In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company’s revenue increased by 263% 
compared to the fourth quarter of 2011. The Company is currently coordinating 
with its existing customers, as essential production partners, to further diversify 
the Company’s product portfolio by developing and manufacturing new model for 
the existing end-buyer and also extend to other new customers’ LCM products 
used in smartphones, tablets, ultrabook computers and automobiles, which the 
Company believes, with confidence, will continue to drive its growth in 2013 of 
its existing production capacity and production facilities. 
 
24.  On January 28, 2013 the Company held a fourth quarter 2012 earnings call with 

analysts, where the company was asked by several analysts about a reduction demand for their 
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products from end-buyers, such as Apple. The company claimed they were not experiencing 

such a slowdown in demand, claiming, “[s]o, in case that their order come from their end-buyer 

is maybe changing. So, the impact to us is not so serious. We can see that from our quarterly 

performance.” 

25. The Defendant Koo further enforced the Company’s predictions for strong 

earnings despite analysts questions regarding the weakening demand in the cell phone market, 

stating: 

And for the future, our customer- direct customer, they can get more order 
for the smartphone or tablets from other customer. So, this is also-we are 
full then, and then as the production partner, we will coordinate and share 
the order for viewing the LCM for their end-buyer.  
 

26. On March 15, 2013, the Company filed an annual report for the period ended 

December 31, 2012 on a Form 20-F with the SEC reiterated the Company’s previously reported 

annual financial results and financial position.  In addition, the Form 20-F contained signed 

certifications by Defendants Koo and Wang, stating that the financial information contained in 

the Form 20-F was accurate, and disclosed any material changes to the Company’s internal 

control over financial reporting. 

27. The Form 20-F represented the following: 

We commenced production of high-resolution LCMs for tablets in June 2012 at 
our Wuxi manufacturing facility and continued to ramp up its production 
throughout 2012.  During 2012, our Wuxi operations focused on developing 
manufacturing processes, evaluations and qualifications by our customers and 
resources planning in preparation for ramping up manufacturing at these facilities. 
 

*** 
We began mass production of high-resolution LCMs for smartphones in 
September 2012 at our Shenzhen manufacturing facility.  During 2012, our 
Shenzhen operations focused on developing manufacturing processes, evaluations 
and qualifications by our customers and resources planning in preparation for 
ramping up manufacturing at these facilities. 
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*** 
It has been our strategy to focus on our new components subassembly business of 
high-resolution LCMs for smartphones in our Shenzhen manufacturing facility 
and high-resolution LCMs for tablets in our Wuxi manufacturing facility.  These 
new products generally have relatively higher gross margins with stable expenses, 
and we have improved our gross margins by discontinuing certain sales orders 
that have had poor performance. 
 
28. The statements referenced in ¶¶ 17 - 27 above, were materially false and/or 

misleading because they misrepresented and failed to disclose the following adverse facts, which 

were known to defendants or recklessly disregarded by them that: (1) intense competition had 

forced the Company to lower its unit sales prices, thereby threatening the Company’s future 

profitability; (2) the Company was well aware of the risk that anticipated cancellation and 

fluctuation of orders by its key customers would cause it to halt capital investment into 

technology platforms; (3)  the Company would have to halt its best quality LCM production 

operations services in both its Shenzhen and Wuxi manufacturing facilities in order to minimize 

further losses and preserve cash; and (4) as a result of the foregoing, the Company’s statements 

were materially false and misleading at all relevant times.  

  THE TRUTH EMERGES 

29. On April 29, 2013, the Company shocked the market, disclosing for the first time 

that due to a drastic decline in demand from its customers, it would be forced to halt its critical 

LCM production operations Shenzhen and Wuxi manufacturing facilities by the end of June 

2013: 

The Company depends on a small number of customers. In the first quarter of 
2013, as a result of the weak consumer market, LCM orders placed by the 
Company’s major customers were significantly lower than the customers’ original 
forecast. The Company was also compelled to lower the unit sales prices in 
response to its customers’ cost down requirements. There was also indication that 
orders placed by these customers could be cancelled with short notice. In response 
to these adverse market conditions, the management has made efforts to minimize 
potential losses resulting from cancellation and fluctuation of orders by its 
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customers and decided to halt capital investment into technology platforms that 
cannot produce steady income streams.  Unless market conditions improve to the 
extent that the Company has confidence to achieve a reasonable gross profit and 
there is no risk of customer confirmed orders being cancelled or significantly 
reduced or other strategic alternatives are found, the Company may have to halt 
its best quality LCM production operations service in both its Shenzhen and Wuxi 
manufacturing facilities by the end of June 2013 in order to minimize further 
losses and preserve cash. The Company’s LCM operations comprise the core of 
the Company’s existing businesses. 
 
The Company is exploring all commercially viable alternatives to maintain its 
LCM operations, including strategic or technological alliances with 
complementary business operations, such as with backlight and touch key panel 
manufacturers.  However, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to 
reach an agreement with these potential business partners on favorable and 
satisfactory terms. 
 

*** 
Due to the high level of competition and weak consumer demand in the market 
for tablets, smartphones and ultrabook computers, the Company’s management 
expects its customer orders will continue to be volatile with increasing pressure to 
reduce unit sales price. As a result, the Company’s gross profit will also be under 
substantial pressure in 2013. Furthermore, if the customers, particularly the major 
LCM customers of the Company continue to experience a decline in the demand 
for the Company’s products as a result of the prevailing economic environment 
and other factors, including the Company’s unwillingness to continue capital 
investment in technology platforms that cannot produce steady income streams, 
the electronic manufacturing services, or EMS, that the Company provides to 
these customers could be  curtailed or possibly even terminated. In addition, the 
Company may also continue to face certain risks including, but not limited to, the 
appreciation of renminbi, inflation in China, customers and suppliers’ inability to 
meet their contractual obligations, financial difficulties resulting in customers and 
suppliers’ illiquidity and global political events and actions, including war and 
terrorism. These risks could affect the Company’s sales, profit margin and loss of 
investments. 
 
30. Also on April 29, 2013, the Company held a first quarter earnings call with 

analysts, where the company, turned dramatically from its recent predictions for strong demand 

for its LCM screens, issued a mere three months earlier, and instead discussed the weakening 

demand from their smartphone and tablet customers.  During the earnings call Defendant Koo 

stated: 
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For the tablet is, we find out that the customer, direct customer is – cannot 
get anymore order from the end buyer. So- and then we already consider 
there is a normal order will be following. Regarding the smartphone, the 
order is continually, but fluctuation quite severe up and down. And then 
also, we are facing price pressure and the order cancellation will be 
happening. 
 

31. Defendant Koo also admitted during the April 29, 2013 earnings call, that his 

earlier 2013 projections were unreliable:  

Yeah, Number one is that the forecast all the time is changing and then 
reduced a lot. Nobody know, we had experienced, as I mentioned before. 
But up to this moment, they are looking for the company to provide a 
service to them is up to, in the third quarter, would be looking for 4 
million pieces per month and then only expand to end of September. But 
in the last quarter, we don’t maybe consider about forecast is true or not. 
 

32. On this news, the Company’s shares declined $3.58 per share, or over 31%, to 

close on April 29, 2013, at $7.75 per share. 

PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 
 
33. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil 

Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all those who purchased or 

otherwise acquired Nam Tai Securities during the Class Period (the “Class”); and were damaged 

thereby.  Excluded from the Class are defendants herein, the officers and directors of the 

Company, at all relevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal 

representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which defendants have or had a 

controlling interest. 

34. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable.  Throughout the Class Period, Nam Tai Securities were actively traded on the 

NYSE.  While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time and can 

be ascertained only through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that there are hundreds or 
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thousands of members in the proposed Class.  Record owners and other members of the Class 

may be identified from records maintained by Nam Tai or its transfer agent and may be notified 

of the pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used 

in securities class actions. 

35. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all 

members of the Class are similarly affected by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of 

federal law that is complained of herein. 

36. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the 

Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and securities litigation.  

Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with those of the Class. 

37. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and 

predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.  Among the 

questions of law and fact common to the Class are: 

• whether the federal securities laws were violated by defendants’ acts as 
alleged herein; 

• whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the 
Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business, operations and 
management of Nam Tai; 

• whether the Individual Defendants caused Nam Tai to issue false and 
misleading financial statements during the Class Period; 

• whether defendants acted knowingly or recklessly in issuing false and 
misleading financial statements; 

• whether the prices of Nam Tai Securities during the Class Period were 
artificially inflated because of the defendants’ conduct complained of herein; 
and 

• whether the members of the Class have sustained damages and, if so, what is 
the proper measure of damages. 
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38. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and efficient 

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable.  Furthermore, as 

the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and 

burden of individual litigation make it impossible for members of the Class to individually 

redress the wrongs done to them.  There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as 

a class action. 

39. Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by the 

fraud-on-the-market doctrine in that: 

• defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose material facts 
during the Class Period; 

• the omissions and misrepresentations were material; 

• Nam Tai Securities are traded in efficient markets; 

• the Company’s shares were liquid and traded with moderate to heavy volume 
during the Class Period; 

• the Company traded on the NYSE, and was covered by multiple analysts; 

• the misrepresentations and omissions alleged would tend to induce a 
reasonable investor to misjudge the value of the Company’s Securities; and 

• Plaintiff and members of the Class purchased and/or sold Nam Tai Securities 
between the time the defendants failed to disclose or misrepresented material 
facts and the time the true facts were disclosed, without knowledge of the 
omitted or misrepresented facts. 

40. Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff and the members of the Class are entitled to a 

presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market.  

NO SAFE HARBOR 

41. The statutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain 

circumstances does not apply to any of the allegedly false statements pleaded in this Complaint.  

Many of the specific statements pleaded herein were not identified as “forward-looking 
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statements” when made. To the extent there were any forward-looking statements, there were no 

meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to 

differ materially from those in the purportedly forward-looking statements. Alternatively, to the 

extent that the statutory safe harbor does apply to any forward-looking statements pleaded 

herein, defendants are liable for those false forward-looking statements because at the time each 

of those forward-looking statements were made, the particular speaker knew that the particular 

forward-looking statement was false, and/or the forward-looking statement was authorized 

and/or approved by an executive officer of Aveo who knew that those statements were false 

when made 

COUNT I 
 

(Against All Defendants For Violations of  
Section 10(b) And Rule 10b-5 Promulgated Thereunder) 

42. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if 

fully set forth herein. 

43. This Count is asserted against defendants and is based upon Section 10(b) of the 

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder by the SEC. 

44. During the Class Period, defendants engaged in a plan, scheme, conspiracy and 

course of conduct, pursuant to which they knowingly or recklessly engaged in acts, transactions, 

practices and courses of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon Plaintiff and the 

other members of the Class; made various untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state 

material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading; and employed devices, schemes and artifices to 

defraud in connection with the purchase and sale of Securities.  Such scheme was intended to, 

and, throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public, including Plaintiff and 
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other Class members, as alleged herein; (ii) artificially inflate and maintain the market price of 

Nam Tai Securities; and (iii) cause Plaintiff and other members of the Class to purchase Nam Tai 

Securities and options at artificially inflated prices.  In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan 

and course of conduct, defendants, and each of them, took the actions set forth herein. 

45. Pursuant to the above plan, scheme, conspiracy and course of conduct, each of the 

defendants participated directly or indirectly in the preparation and/or issuance of the quarterly 

and annual reports, SEC filings, press releases and other statements and documents described 

above, including statements made to securities analysts and the media that were designed to 

influence the market for Nam Tai Securities.  Such reports, filings, releases and statements were 

materially false and misleading in that they failed to disclose material adverse information and 

misrepresented the truth about Nam Tai’s finances and business prospects. 

46. By virtue of their positions at Nam Tai, defendants had actual knowledge of the 

materially false and misleading statements and material omissions alleged herein and intended 

thereby to deceive Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, or, in the alternative, defendants 

acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed or refused to ascertain and disclose 

such facts as would reveal the materially false and misleading nature of the statements made, 

although such facts were readily available to defendants.  Said acts and omissions of defendants 

were committed willfully or with reckless disregard for the truth.  In addition, each defendant 

knew or recklessly disregarded that material facts were being misrepresented or omitted as 

described above. 

47. Information showing that defendants acted knowingly or with reckless disregard 

for the truth is peculiarly within defendants’ knowledge and control.  As the senior managers 
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and/or directors of Nam Tai, the Individual Defendants had knowledge of the details of Nam Tai 

internal affairs. 

48. The Individual Defendants are liable both directly and indirectly for the wrongs 

complained of herein.  Because of their positions of control and authority, the Individual 

Defendants were able to and did, directly or indirectly, control the content of the statements of 

Nam Tai.  As officers and/or directors of a publicly-held company, the Individual Defendants 

had a duty to disseminate timely, accurate, and truthful information with respect to Nam Tai’s 

businesses, operations, future financial condition and future prospects.  As a result of the dis-

semination of the aforementioned false and misleading reports, releases and public statements, 

the market price of Nam Tai Securities was artificially inflated throughout the Class Period.  In 

ignorance of the adverse facts concerning Nam Tai’s business and financial condition which 

were concealed by defendants, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased Nam Tai 

Securities at artificially inflated prices and relied upon the price of the Securities, the integrity of 

the market for the Securities and/or upon statements disseminated by defendants, and were 

damaged thereby. 

49. During the Class Period, Nam Tai Securities were traded on an active and 

efficient market.  Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, relying on the materially false and 

misleading statements described herein, which the defendants made, issued or caused to be 

disseminated, or relying upon the integrity of the market, purchased shares of Nam Tai Securities 

at prices artificially inflated by defendants’ wrongful conduct.  Had Plaintiff and the other 

members of the Class known the truth, they would not have purchased said Securities, or would 

not have purchased them at the inflated prices that were paid.  At the time of the purchases by 

Plaintiff and the Class, the true value of Nam Tai Securities was substantially lower than the 
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prices paid by Plaintiff and the other members of the Class.  The market price of Nam Tai 

Securities declined sharply upon public disclosure of the facts alleged herein to the injury of 

Plaintiff and Class members. 

50. By reason of the conduct alleged herein, defendants knowingly or recklessly, 

directly or indirectly, have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 

promulgated thereunder. 

51. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and 

the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases 

and sales of the Company’s Securities during the Class Period, upon the disclosure that the 

Company had been disseminating misrepresented financial statements to the investing public. 

COUNT II 

(Violations of Section 20(a) of the 
Exchange Act Against The Individual Defendants) 

52. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in the 

foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein. 

53. During the Class Period, the Individual Defendants participated in the operation 

and management of Nam Tai, and conducted and participated, directly and indirectly, in the 

conduct of Nam Tai’s business affairs.  Because of their senior positions, they knew the adverse 

non-public information about Nam Tai’s misstatement of income and expenses and false 

financial statements. 

54. As officers and/or directors of a publicly owned company, the Individual 

Defendants had a duty to disseminate accurate and truthful information with respect to Nam 

Tai’s financial condition and results of operations, and to correct promptly any public statements 

issued by Nam Tai which had become materially false or misleading. 
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55. Because of their positions of control and authority as senior officers, the 

Individual Defendants were able to, and did, control the contents of the various reports, press 

releases and public filings which Nam Tai disseminated in the marketplace during the Class 

Period concerning Nam Tai’s results of operations.  Throughout the Class Period, the Individual 

Defendants exercised their power and authority to cause Nam Tai to engage in the wrongful acts 

complained of herein. The Individual Defendants therefore, were “controlling persons” of Nam 

Tai within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act.  In this capacity, they participated 

in the unlawful conduct alleged which artificially inflated the market price of Nam Tai 

Securities. 

56. Each of the Individual Defendants, therefore, acted as a controlling person of 

Nam Tai.  By reason of their senior management positions and/or being directors of Nam Tai, 

each of the Individual Defendants had the power to direct the actions of, and exercised the same 

to cause, Nam Tai to engage in the unlawful acts and conduct complained of herein.  Each of the 

Individual Defendants exercised control over the general operations of Nam Tai and possessed 

the power to control the specific activities which comprise the primary violations about which 

Plaintiff and the other members of the Class complain. 

57. By reason of the above conduct, the Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to 

Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the violations committed by Nam Tai. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against defendants as follows: 

A. Determining that the instant action may be maintained as a class action under 

Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and certifying Plaintiff as the Class 

representative;  
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B. Requiring defendants to pay damages sustained by Plaintiff and the Class by 

reason of the acts and transactions alleged herein; 

C. Awarding Plaintiff and the other members of the Class prejudgment and post-

judgment interest, as well as their reasonable attorneys' fees, expert fees and other costs; and 

D. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper. 

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury. 

Dated: May 17,2013 

POMERANTZ GROSSMAN HUFFORD 
LSTROM & GROSS LLP 

.~ 
i rc r. ross 

J emy . Lieberman 
L sley . Portnoy 
6 T ird Avenue, 20th Floor 
Ne ork, New York 10016 
Telephone: (212) 661-1100 
Facsimile: (212) 661-8665 

POMERANTZ GROSSMAN HUFFORD 
DAHLSTROM & GROSS LLP 
Patrick V. Dahlstrom 
Ten South LaSalle Street, Suite 3505 
Chicago, Illinois 60603 
Telephone: (312) 377-1181 
Facsimile: (312) 377-1184 

Attorneysfor Plaintiff 
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